City of Greenfield Traffic Safety Committee
Regular Meeting Minutes



Wednesday, November 5, 2025    1:30pm
Richard J. Pasco Council Chambers, City Hall
10 S. State St, Greenfield, IN 46140


Glen Morrow, City Engineer called the meeting to order at 1:30pm.

Monica Evans took roll call. 

Members Present: 
Street Commissioner Tyler Rankins
Chairman City Engineer Glen Morrow
Police Lieutenant Charles Murnan

Members Absent:
Councilwoman Amy Kirkpatrick
Gary Pence



Approval of Minutes:
A motion was made to approve October 2025 minutes as presented by T. Rankins and seconded by C. Murnan.  Motion carried. 


OLD BUSINESS:


Melody Lane:   G. Morrow summarized a report on Melody Lane that was included in the packet. This report evaluated the items identified during the October Traffic Safety meeting. He stated when Walmart was originally constructed, Melody Lane was not platted as a public road but became a city street with Walmart relocated and the parcel was re-platted. 

Landscaping on the east side of Melody Lane is very close to the right of way and some of it is within the right of way.  The landscaping on the west side is on private property.  In the UDO, landscaping is required to have a sight gap.  Some bushes are as high as 4 feet and some of the trees are as low as 4 feet. 

Removal of trees might require Plan Commission and BZA approval.  There was a State law passed last year stating that a City could lower the speed limit to 20mph without engineering review.  The speed study that was conducted was biased as there were message boards in place.  The average speed was 15mph and the 85th percentile was at 19 mph.  33 vehicles exceeded the speed limit and 7 of those were during store hours.  

The volume is roughly the same in front of the stores as there are in the drive isles.  That will be enough to warrant a stop sign.  The site distance is also an issue.  C. Murnan stated that in 2020 when the State Road 9 median was being built, they anticipated an increase in traffic on the side streets.  He listed intersections in the area where there were crashes after the median was completed. 

G. Morrow talked about speed bumps, humps, cushions and tables.  Speed bumps should not be used on roads, cushions are not good in snow and ice, speed humps or tables should be considered for this area.  G. Morrow stated that he believes speed tables would work best in this area.  T. Rankins stated that he would get an estimate on cost.  

The traffic counts were taken over 6 days and recorded 15000 vehicles with an average of 2500 per day.  This is considered an urban collector street and comparable to some sections of Broadway Street, Franklin and Morristown Pike.  

Someone in the audience asked about taking that section of road and not making it a city street.  G. Morrow stated that if they tried to reroute the traffic it would just move the problems to others stores. 

G. Morrow stated that HAWK signals were also discussed at the last meeting and they don’t know where a good place to put the buttons to cross would be.  The memo recommended lowering the speed limit to 20 mph, place 2 speed bumps/tables, add stop signs at each speed bump/table, add stop for pedestrian signs, ask the owner to add stop signs in the drive isles of the parking lot, work with owner to seek permission to remove trees, have owner to trim out the trees or replace and have the owner replace shrubs or trim them down to below 3 feet. 

C. Murnan states his top 4 are the speed tables with crosswalks, trim or remove bushes and trees and lower the speed limit.  T. Rankins agrees with the speed tables and stop for pedestrian signs.  T. Rankins then said he likes all the recommendations and will be leaving the message boards in place for the time being.  

Greg Dewitt came forward and stated that at different times of the day traffic is different.  He appreciated the effort that is being given to this issue.  

Crystal Matthews, came forward and thought that 20mph is still too fast for the area.  She thinks the speed tables are a great idea and there also needs to be 1 in the middle along with each end.  She stated there is no crosswalk at the south side of the Dollar Tree.  Ms. Matthews also asked about the cameras at Tractor Supply and Bealls being blocked by some of the bushes on the east side of the road. 

T. Rankins is concerned that adding speed limit signs may make people go faster than the average of 16 mph that was obtained during the traffic study.   

A motion was made to approve all the recommendations and additional cameras on the storefronts by C. Murnan and seconded by T. Rankins. Motion carried 3-0.  


South Street One-Way:   G. Morrow gave an update.  He received a revised traffic study and he has not had time to review.  Will discuss next month. 

Mailbox Parking:  G. Morrow stated this has been to Council and passed the first vote, second and third reading is at the next meeting. He asked C. Murnan to come to the Council meeting to explain why this is needed. 

Brunson Landing Speeding:   T. Rankins stated he has a report but has not reviewed and will bring it next month.

Pennsy Trail Crossing at State Street Modifications:  T. Rankins stated that the sign has been ordered.  Council would also like to place signs at the other Trail crossings as well. G. Morrow suggested waiting to see how this first one works and go from there.  T. Rankins agrees. 

Oak Boulevard Speed Study:  T. Rankins asked if it went to the City Attorney for an ordinance.  G. Morrow will review and give an update next month.   


NEW BUSINESS:

Four way stop @ Osage & American Legion:   T. Rankins received an email with concerns about the intersection only being a 2 way stop and not a 4 way.  C. Murnan doesn’t feel that there needs to be a 4-way stop as there have not been any issues there.  T. Rankins is concerned that with the new development downtown there may be a need for a 4-way stop at that intersection.  G. Morrow is suggesting a traffic study at that intersection.  T. Rankins stated the house on the South side will be cutting down their bushes to have a little better sight line. 

Miscellaneous:  

Legacy Lane Speed Limit:  A letter was received from Saundra Box with concerns about the speed on Legacy Lane.  C. Murnan stated he has ran radar in that area and he didn’t get anyone over 25 mph during peak times.  T. Rankins stated he did a speed study and there were a few speeders.  They have put up crosswalks and Handicap signs and they are not paid attention to.  G. Morrow stated maybe they can make the default speed limit in the community 25 mph instead of 30.  Mayor Titus asked if Ms. Box was invited to the meeting and advised that we just received the letter and will discuss further next month. M. Evans was asked to call Ms. Box and invite her to the meeting in December.  T. Rankins will bring previous traffic studies.  


Miscellaneous:     

Blue & New Intersection:  There have been enough accidents at that intersection, a 4-way stop should be considered.  C. Murnan will bring more information next month for discussion. He said that there is no sign stating cross traffic does not stop on the south bound section of Blule Road north of New Road.  T. Rankins stated that he would place a sign at the intersection.  G. Morrow asked for data for next month’s meeting to review further.  

North Street One Way:   G. Morrow asked for the committee to go to the area and drive around and the one way can be discussed next month. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

A motion to adjourn was made by T. Rankins and seconded by C. Murnan. 
3

